
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY AUGUST 19, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be 

subject to public disclosure.    
AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations 

1. Update on Closing Out Cubby Park Improvement Project – Nate Kass, Principal / 
Branch Manager with Fehr Graham Engineering & Environmental.  

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any 

item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting August 5, 2019. 
 
2. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Closed Meeting August 6, 2019. 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

3. Motion to Approve a Block Party Permit to the West Branch United Methodist Church 
for their annual tailgate celebration. 

 
4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 

 
1. Resolution 1836 – Approving Change Order #8 for $3,000.00 amended from the 

Original Change Order of $7,586.67 Associated with the Lift Rental Expense, Work 
Stoppage, Additional Installation Labor, and Material Transportation related to the 
Pavilion Panels. 

 
2. Resolution 1832 – Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 12 In the Amount of 

$17,973.33 to Needham Excavating Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements Project. 
 
3. Resolution 1833 – A Resolution Approving a 28e Agreement between the City of 

West Branch and the West Branch Public School District regarding use of ROW for 
the construction of a Press Box at the Rose Bowl.   

 
4. Resolution 1834 – A Resolution Authorizing additional budget funding not to 

exceed $5,000 for the in-house install of 250ft of sidewalk connecting the 
Northside development to existing public sidewalk. 

 
5. Discussion Item: Location of a Replacement Light Post Downtown. 
 
6. Discussion Item:  Strategy for Incremental Sewer Rate Increases over the next 3 

years in preparation for the new wastewater treatment process.   
 
7. Resolution 1835 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds to the West 

Branch Public Library Parking Lot Improvement Project. 
 
8. Discussion Item: Regarding Gateway Park Signage at Cubby Park. 

 
H. Reports 

 
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting          August 5, 2019  

Council Chambers                    7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin then 

invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Council members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler, Brian Pierce and Jordan Ellyson 

were present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, Police Chief Mike Horihan, Sargent John Hanna, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, 

Library Director Nick Shimmin and Finance Officer Gordon Edgar. 
 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

No comments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council Meeting July 22, 2019. 

Motion to approve a Class C Liquor License (5 day license) for Apres Wine Bar & Bistro, located a 2 Ember Lane, from 

August 15, 2019 to August 20, 2019 (Pending Fire Inspection). 

Motion to approve Pay Estimate #3 for the College Street Bridge Project. 

Motion to approve Pay Estimate #4 for the College Street Bridge Project. 

Motion to approve the Claims Report. 

Motion to approve the Claims Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    318 COLLEGE ST & 2ND ST IMPROVEMENTS   7,279.94  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    BRIDGE INSPECTION     1,020.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    WW TREATMENT PLANT FACILITY STUDY   180.90  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    ENGINEERING SERVICE-MEADOWS 3,4   1,491.58  
VEENSTRA & KIMM  INC.    COLLEGE ST BRIDGE BID & CONSTRUCTION   16,255.07  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL   LIGHTS & ATHLETIC FIELD USAGE    1,000.00  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL   LIBRARY PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS   54,202.05  
WEST BRANCH FORD     REPAIR PARTS     23.13  
WINDSTAR LINES INC     CHARTER LOST ISLAND WATERPARK   1,025.00    
TOTAL            478,654.81  
  
PAYROLL      7/26/2019      59,530.90  
  
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
  
EASTERN IOWA BRASS BAND    ENTERTAINMENT - HHTD    2,000.00  
JULIA HIME      VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    50.00  
REDMOND JONES     TRAVEL EXPENSE     528.43  
REBECCA KNOCE     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    150.00  
MEDIACOM      CABLE SERVICE     41.90  
JEREMY BOEKELMAN     ENTERTAINMENT - INFLATABLES - HHTD   11,250.00  
NEEDHAM EXCAVATING    308 PV PARK CONSTRUCTION    94,919.11  
US BANK CREDIT CARD     OFFICE SUPPLIES, CAMP PROGRAMS   2,405.03  
VERIZON WIRELESS     TELEPHONE SERVICE     802.73  
BODY SOUND LLC     SOUND & LIGHTS - HHTD    1,050.00  
F & B COMMUNICATIONS    WEB HOSTING SERVICE    359.40  
ROSTER'S ULTIMATE RACING    ENTERTAINMENT - HHTD    400.00  
UPS      SHIPPING      73.05    
TOTAL            114,029.65  
  
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          652,215.36  
  
FUND TOTALS     
001   GENERAL FUND     52,488.59  
022   CIVIC CENTER      654.07  
031   LIBRARY      6,609.61  
110   ROAD USE TAX      9,337.50  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY     13,159.15  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY   96,396.61  
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE     247,674.74  
318   COLLEGE ST & 2ND ST IMPROVEMENTS   145,571.79  
320   LIBRARY PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS   54,202.05  
600   WATER FUND      7,704.44  
610   SEWER FUND      14,626.81  
740   STORM WATER UTILITY     3,790.00  
  
GRAND TOTAL      652,215.36 
 
REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2019  
FUND JUNE 
001  GENERAL FUND    33,990.37  
022  CIVIC CENTER    112.97  
031  LIBRARY    476.78  
036  TORT LIABILITY    81.95  
110  ROAD USE TAX    24,216.35  
112  TRUST & AGENCY   513.60  
119  EMERGENCY TAX FUND   64.68  
121  LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX   17,114.51  
125  TIF     480.81  
226  DEBT SERVICE    491.78  
310 COLLEGE ST BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 175473.76 
500  CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND  576.71  
501  KROUTH PRINCIPAL FUND  376.27 
502  KROUTH INTEREST FUND   87.18  
600  WATER FUND    44,462.38  
610  SEWER FUND    35,281.77  
740  STORM WATER UTILITY   4,950.94  
TOTAL     338,752.81 



 

 

Jones provided a revised Pay Estimate number four for council consideration.  It was determined that in error was 

made on the version submitted in the council packet.  The correct pay estimate amount is $ 214,637.12 and includes 

participating, non-participating and alternate amounts for completed work on the College Street Bridge project. 

 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES: Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman, 

Pierce, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 
Discussion - Latest developments regarding the downtown mural project. 

Jones informed the Council that the mural location previously selected has fallen through and a new location was 

being considered.  Jones said that he had a meeting with Cedar County Economic Development Director, Rod Ness 

and artist Ali Hval to discuss other options.  Jones said it was determined that the mural could be painted on panels 

and installed as a billboard.  The new location being considered is at the former Casey’s site once the building has 

been removed.  The Council expressed their desire to find a permanent location for the mural and preferably located 

on City property so that they wouldn’t have to worry if a property owner would change their mind and want the mural 

removed at a later date.  Jones said if that were the case, a contract would be drawn up to obligate each party for the 

installation/de-installation of the mural.  Jones further stated that funds for the project would come from hotel/motel 

tax dollars and that the U of Iowa was paying for half of the project. 
 
Discussion - Accepting the Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan and receiving the Wastewater Task Group’s top 3 

recommendations. 

Jones said the waste water task force had completed their review of various waste water treatment solutions and 

provided the groups top three recommendations for consideration.  The first, Submerged Attached Growth Reactor 

(SAGR), which is a lagoon enhancement system that forces waste water into aerated coarse gravel beds to achieve 

ammonia limits required by the Iowa Department of Natural Resources.  Cost of project $6,312,000.  Second, Lemna 

Technologies, a company which has introduced a floating modular cover system.  This solution consists of individual 

casing that fasten together to form a complete cover over the water surface.  Cost of project $7,294,000.  Third, 

Sequencing Batch Reactor (SBR), the only mechanical plant solution.  This would require an upgrade in operator 

certifications which come at a higher operating expense but is able to accommodate unforeseen / over performing 

population growth.  Cost of project $6,617,000. 

 

The Council felt that the SAGR system, with approval from the City Engineer was the best option for West Branch 

and directed Jones to proceed with the planning of that system.  Jones said he would begin exploring financing options 

and a future sewer rate structure that will help with funding the project. 
 
Resolution 1831 – Approving a purchase agreement between Casey’s Marketing Company and the City of West 

Branch. /Move to action. 

Jones said City Attorney Olson had finally been able to negotiate an agreement with Casey’s Marketing Company.  

The agreement includes Casey’s removing the building and providing a chip & seal parking lot for city use.  

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve the Resolution 1831.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Stoolman, 

Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1830 – Approve a Fund Transfer to the West Branch Public Library. /Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler to approve the Resolution 1830.  AYES:  Ellyson, Goodweiler, Miller, 

Stoolman, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported to that he has a meeting with the owner of Point Builders on Tuesday to discuss Change Order #8 

(Resolution 1799) that the Council previously failed.  Jones asked what the Council was comfortable with paying.  

The Council said $3,000 was all they were willing to offer.  Jones also said that discussions were still taking place on 

a county wide project for the Iowa / Cedar County Great Places and asked if any council member was interested in 

participating in the committee.  



 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Kevin Olson was absent. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

Library Director Nick Shimmin announced the re-hiring of Becky Knoche as the Youth Librarian.  Becky is replacing 

Soli Page who recently vacated the position to take a job in Illinois.  Shimmin also stated that he now a member of the 

Community Development Group (CDG) board.  Shimmin listed a few projects the group is working on which include 

new, matching benches for the downtown, recent re-location of the CDG office to the Heritage Museum building, and 

planning of Christmas Past.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Pierce thanked the staff for their work on putting on another successful Hoover’s Hometown Days.  He said the event 

and quick clean-up efforts did not go unnoticed.  Pierce said on a positive note, he noticed that people are starting to 

use Cubby Park’s playground, ball fields and pickle ball courts.  But on a negative note, their weeds everywhere, sink 

holes in the out fields, dormant grass and trees and said “it looks like an abandoned park”.  The council discussed the 

many items still remaining and wants some answers from Fehr Graham.  The council agreed that it is time to hire 

someone else to finish the park and file for damages against the project.   

 

Miller asked for a timeline for the sidewalk on North Downey Street (to connect with Brian Shay’s project) to Northside 

Drive.  Goodale reminded the Council that there is a twelve water main dead-ended near Northside Drive that needs 

to be addressed before moving forward.  Goodale said he will discuss options with the City Engineer for installing the 

sidewalk separately from addressing the water main issue.   Miller also said the new owners of the West Branch Village 

(Haven Park) is interested in meeting with City officials on a possible trail project. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Ellyson, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting adjourned at 

8:27 p.m.  

 

       

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes 

are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     Special City Council Meeting                August 6, 2019
  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      6:30 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the Special West Branch City Council meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin 

then invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Council members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler and Jordan Ellyson were present.  

Brian Pierce was absent.  City Staff:  Redmond Jones II was present. 

 

Motion to adjourn to closed session to discuss City Administrator annual review per Section 21.5(i) of the Code of 

Iowa. / Move to action.  

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to adjourn to closed session.  Motion carried on a voice vote. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Special City Council meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m.  

       

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 2 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Block Party Permit to the West Branch United 

Methodist Church for their annual tailgate celebration. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 14, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

This is an annual event.  Previous years have concluded without incident. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 13, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

   



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Late Claim 

Additions 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice 

vote.  City Council meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice 

vote.  City Council meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1836 – Approving Change Order #8 for $3,000 amended from 

the Original Change Order Amount of $7,586.67 Associated with the Lift 

Rental Expense, Work Stoppage, Additional Installation Labor, and 

Material Transportation related to the Pavilion Panels. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator  

DATE:  August 13, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

This change order for work at Cubby Park is recommended in order to reflect additional payment 

for removal of installed polycarbonate panels on the south side of the Pavilion, transporting 

panels to and from the city shop for application of the decal film, and additional lift rental 

required for completing this work. The exhibit included with the change order is a Change Order 

Request provided by Needham Excavating Inc.  

 

This Change Order request has been amended to reflect a $4,586.67 reduction which was 

negotiated settlement with the contractor(s). Thus, amending the original change order request 

of $7,586.67 to the current request of $3,000.00; 

 

This amount was suggested by City Council and ultimately settled on by Point Builders in one 

on one meetings with the City Administrator. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice 

vote.  City Council meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice 

vote.  City Council meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1836 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #8 FOR $3,000.00 FOR THE LIFT 

RENTAL EXPENSE RELATED TO WORK STOPPAGE, ADDITIONAL 

INSTILLATION LABOR AND MATERIAL TRANSPORTATION RELATED TO THE 

PAVILION PANELS. 

 

WHEREAS, the installation of the polycarbonate panels to allow for natural light into the 

Pavilion was deemed to be too transparent and the city directed the removal of the materials 

installed; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council chose to have a decal film applied to the interior of the panels 

prior to installation; and  

 

WHEREAS, as a result that installation had already commenced when this preference was 

discovered, there was additional expenses incurred; and  

 

WHEREAS, due to weather conditions and the requirement of the film application to have the 

materials applied above freezing and in dry conditions, the panels were transported by the 

contractor to the city shop and back to the project site after the film was applied; and  

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. is requesting payment for the removal of installed 

polycarbonate panels, transporting panels to and from the city shop for application of the decal 

film, and additional lift rental required for completing this work.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa approves the change order #8 for $3,000.00 relating to the terms and explanations of this 

resolution.  

 

* * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 19th day of August, 2019. 

 

 

 

 _____________________________________  

Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________  

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice 

vote.  City Council meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  

 



 

 

  
                  

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1832 – Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 12 In the 

Amount of $17,973.33 to Needham Excavating Inc. for the Cubby Park 

Improvements Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 13, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

This is pay estimate number twelve (12) in the amount of $17,973.33 to Needham Excavating 

Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements project.  

 

Listed below are the pay estimates paid out to date:  

Partial Pay Estimate Number One (1) in the amount of $276,843.04  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Two (2) in the amount of $362,865.81  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Three (3) in the amount of $247,973.87  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Four (4) in the amount of $221,684.85  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Five (5) in the amount of $189,204.44  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Six (6) in the amount of $604,543.90  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Seven (7) in the amount of $113,936.67  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Seven (8) in the amount of $90,951.58  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Nine (9) in the amount of $326,477.82  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Ten (10) in the amount of $178,421.16  

Partial Pay Estimate Number Eleven (11) in the amount of $94,919.11 

 

This would bring the project to 97.36% completed 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction / Feedback from Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1832 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER 12 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $17,973.33 TO NEEDHAM EXCAVATING INC. FOR THE CUBBY 

PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the construction 

contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) by the West 

Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 2018 in the 

amount of $2,945,427.39; and  

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating has declared that said project has started and work has 

been rendered in accordance with drawings and specifications on the Project, based on 

observations West Branch project managers and the project managers of Fehr Graham who are 

contracted with the City of West Branch to oversee the construction process.  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, approved Partial Pay Estimate Number One (1) 

through Eleven (11) in the amount of $2,707,822.25 to Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, 

Iowa to date; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to for the City Council to accept and approve the Pay 

Estimate Number Twelve (12) in the amount of $17,973.33 and the project is now 

approximately 97.36% complete.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that Partial 

Pay Estimate Number Twelve in the amount of $17,973.33 to Needham Excavating Inc. of 

Walcott, IA is approved.  

 

* * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 19th day of August, 2019. 

 

 

 

       _______________________________  

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_________________________________________  

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

   
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1833 – A Resolution Approving a 28e Agreement between 

the City of West Branch and the West Branch Public School District 

regarding the use of ROW for the construction and location of a Press Box 

at the Rose Bowl.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney  

DATE:  August 1, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The purpose of this 28e Agreement is to set forth the duties and obligations of the City and the 

School District in connection of the Project by the School known as the Press Box at the Rose 

Bowl. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 



 

 

  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1833 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A 28E AGREEMENT WITH THE WEST BRANCH 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT REGARDING THE ENCROACHMENT OF THE 

LITTLE ROSE BOWL PRESS BOX ON THE OLIPHANT STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY. 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Community School District recently replaced the Press 

Box structure at the Little Rose Bowl and said Press Box encroaches upon the Oliphant Street 

right-of-way; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has drafted a 28E Agreement to allow said 

encroachment that requires the approval of both the City Council and the Board of Directors of 

the West Branch Community School District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Board of Directors has approved said 28E Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to approve said 28E Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned 28E Agreement be and the same is hereby approved.  

Further, the Mayor and City Clerk are directed to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 

City. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to file a copy of the 

fully executed agreement with the Iowa Secretary of State as required by law. 

 

* * * * * 
 

Passed and approved this 19th day of August, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1834 – A Resolution Authorizing Additional Funding from 

the Budget in the Amount not to Exceed $5,000 for the installation of 

250ft of sidewalk connecting the Northside Development to existing 

public sidewalk. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  August 13, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

As legislated in Resolution 1785 approved back in March of this year.  The developer of 

Northside First Addition Condos (Brian Shay) was required to build public sidewalk on his 

property as apart his development agreement with the city.   

 

It was the intent that this sidewalk would be connected to existing public sidewalks once the 

Northside sidewalks were installed.  In order to meet this commitment this item was devised as 

a low cost approach to this issue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1835 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FUNDING FROM THE BUDGET IN THE 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,000 FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 250FT OF SIDEWALK 

CONNECTING THE NORTHSIDE DEVELOPMENT TO EXISTING PUBLIC SIDEWALK. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa that the City Clerk 

is hereby authorized the budgeting of 250ft of sidewalk connecting the Northside Development 

to existing public sidewalk.  

 

* * * * * 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of August, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

      

 ______________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

___________________________________________                  

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding the location of a Replacement Light Post 

Downtown.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 13, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

The Ornamental Street Light at the north east corner of Poplar and Main has been the victim of 

two car accidents where the light post has been struck and damaged.  As staff works to get the 

pole replaced, there is some concern with the nature of on-site parking at the Groom Station that 

continuing to locate a street light there will invite future car accidents at that location.   

 

 
 
Despite being a desired location by the business (The Groom Station); for safety and general 

downtown lighting reasons, a “plan b site” has been identified by the West Branch Times 

building which falls in line with the symmetrical placement of other street light and provides 

much needed lighting for the public parking lot between the Winery and the West Branch Times 

Building.    
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction / Feedback from City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

Current Ornamental Street Light Locations (shown in red marks) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Option “A”, last location where 

the light post was damaged twice 

in car related accidents.  It is 

believed to be an obstruction for 

on-site parking. 

Option “B”, would provide some 

lighting for the public parking lot 

to the east and provide street light 

on main which has to rely on the 

street light at Oliphant as the 

closet street light on the south side 

of main west of the street light by 

the winery.  



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: A Strategy for Incremental Sewer Rate Increases Over 

the Next 3 Years in Preparation for the New Wastewater Treatment 

Process. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 1, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Public Works Department Sewer Utility division will be required to implement new 

wastewater compliance regulations which will affect the current rate structure.  In the past, the 

sanitary sewer rate has been generated on the volume of water a property consumed; however, a 

potential incremental step increase rate system will have to take into account a large portion of 

the cost of the City’s sewer structure will be attributed to the infrastructure upgrades needed due 

to the aforementioned compliance regulations (unfunded mandates).   

 

The attached memorandum is an explanation of the assumptions made to estimate the potential 

incremental step increase sewer rate system.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Council Direction / Feedback 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 
 
DATE:  August 19th, 2019 
 
RE:  Sewer Rate Increase Strategy (Due to Infrastructure Investment) 

 

Based on the following assumptions, staff would recommend three annual $2.49 rate increases 

in preparation for the revenue needed for debt service payment related to a new wastewater 

treatment facility. 

 

Assumptions For Staff Estimate: 

  

 Currently our rate is $7.79 per 1000 gallons 

 Our actual Sewer Revenue for the past three years are listed below. 

 Sewer Revenues for the past 3 fiscal years (actuals)  

FY 2018 - 2019 FY 2017 -2018 FY 2016 - 2017 

$378,871 $386,315 $363,163 

 

 In order to determine a unit value (which would equate to each additional $1.00 added 

to our current rate), we used our last year’s revenue actual of $378,871 divided it by our 

current sewer rate of $7.79 per 1000.  This gave us a unit value (equivalent) of $48,635 

of revenue generated for every $1.00 billed per 1000 gallons.   

 $1.00 per 1000 gallons =  $48,635 

 Based on construction cost of the SAGR wastewater treatment facility at $6,312,000.  

Principal only would require a debt service of $315,600 annually over the next 20 year 

period.   

 This expense does not include $954,000 expected operational and management (O&M) 

expense that Veenstra & Kimm engineering anticipates with this project.  If we add an 

additional 20 year amortization for O&M that would be another principle only amount 

of $47,700.  This amount may or may not be allowed to be financed with capital 

expense.  



 

 

 Debt Service $315,600 added with additional annual O&M expense $47,700 totals an 

annual need of $363,300 a year once the project comes on line in 2022.   

 Dividing $363,300 by a three year incremental rate increase process, we would need to 

increase rates to equate to $121,100 in revenues additionally each year for the next three 

years in preparation of operational expenses and our first debt service payment in 2022. 

 Using our unit value assumption of $48,635 per $1.00 additional dollar of sewer rate 

increase.  We would need to increase rates $2.49 per 1000 gallons a year for the next 

three years.  

 This would make our overall sewer rate $15.26 per 1000 at the end of the three year 

period.  With the 1700 gallon minimum, the rate payer who uses the 1700 minimum 

gallons would pay $26.00 a month on sewer. 

These calculation do not include interest rates and the third year of the step increase strategy 

may need to include an adjustment for this variable.  However, our assumptions used 

conservative revenue actuals which should give some insulation from unforeseen interest rate 

hikes.  For example, budget planning purposes this year we used $390,000 as an estimate for 

Sewer Revenue projection, and with additional new residents this number should increase during 

the 3 year design and construction period. 

As a reference of how our current rates compare; please see below (please note: that the West 

Branch row reflects $7.79 rate and the 1700 gallons minimum requirement.  That would be a 

calculation of 7.79 x 1700 = 13.25 rounded): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Reference: is from the West Branch draft Comprehensive Plan 



 

 

 

 
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1835 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds to the 

West Branch Public Library Parking Lot Improvement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 14, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The funds to pay for this project were approved in the FY2020 budget.  This entry will move 

funds to the Library Parking Lot project from the General Fund and allow the project to be 

closed.   

.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1835 

 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A FUND TRANSFER TO FUND THE LIBRARY PARKING 

LOT IMPPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa that the City Clerk is hereby 

authorized to transfer funds effective August 1, 2019, as follows: 

 

 

T/O General Fund  001  $    54,202.05  Transfer from General Fund-Budgeted in FY20 

 

T/I Library Parking Lot 320  $    54,202.05  Transfer from General Fund-Budgeted in FY20 

Improvement Project 

 

 

* * * * * 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 19th day of August, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 ____________________________________________ 

      Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding Gateway Park Signage at Cubby Park. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Goodwilder, City Council Member 

DATE:  August 16, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As we get closer to closing out the Cubby Park Improvement Project, it may be time to begin 

the process of determining gateway signage for Cubby Park. 

(examples) 

   

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction and Feedback – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 


